
 
 

 

Queries about the agenda?  Need a different format? 
 

Contact: Kate Clark – Tel: 01303 853267 
Email: committee@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk or download from our 

website 
www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk 

 

Date of Publication:  Wednesday, 27 February 2019 

 

Agenda 
 

Meeting: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 7 March 2019 

Time: 7.00 pm 

Place: Council Chamber - Civic Centre, Folkestone 

  

To: All members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
 The committee will consider the matters, listed below, at the date, time and 

place shown above.  The meeting will be open to the press and public. 
 
Members of the committee, who wish to have information on any matter 
arising on the agenda, which is not fully covered in these papers, are 
requested to give notice, prior to the meeting, to the Chairman or 
appropriate officer. 
 
This meeting will be webcast live to the council’s website at 
https://folkestone-hythe.public-i.tv/core/portal/home.  Although unlikely, no 
guarantee can be made that Members of the public in attendance will not 
appear in the webcast footage. It is therefore recommended that anyone 
with an objection to being filmed does not enter the council chamber.  
 

 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  
 

2.   Declarations of Interest  
 

 Members of the committee should declare any interests which fall under 
the following categories*: 
 
a) disclosable pecuniary interests (DPI); 
b) other significant interests (OSI); 
c) voluntary announcements of other interests. 

 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:committee@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk
http://www.folkestone-hythe.gov.uk/
https://shepway.public-i.tv/core/portal/home


Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 7 March 2019 

3.   Call-in of Decision number 18/076 -  Informal Consultation on 
Proposals to Extend controlled parking zones F & G (Pages 3 - 52) 
 

 To consider a call in of the decision made by the Cabinet Member, 
Councillor Mrs Berry, on 19 February 2019 in respect of report number 
C/18/76. 
 
The Committee may come to one of the following conclusions: 
 
a)  That the challenge to the decision should be taken no further and 

the decision may be implemented; 
b)  That the decision is contrary to the Budget or Policy Framework and 

should therefore be referred to the Council. In such a case, the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee must set out its reasoning for the 
Council to consider; 

c)  That the matter should be referred back to the decision-taker, for 
reconsideration. In such a case, the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee must set out its reasoning for the decision-taker to 
consider. 

 

*Explanations as to different levels of interest 

(a) A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest (DPI) must declare the nature as well as the existence of any such interest 
and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.  A member who declares a DPI in relation to any item must leave the 
meeting for that item (unless a relevant dispensation has been granted). 

(b) A member with an other significant interest (OSI) under the local code of conduct relating to items on this agenda must 
declare the nature as well as the existence of any such interest and the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated.   A 
member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to remove him/herself to the public gallery before the debate and 
not vote on that item (unless a relevant dispensation has been granted). However, prior to leaving, the member may address 
the meeting in the same way that a member of the public may do so. 

(c) Members may make voluntary announcements of other interests which are not required to be disclosed under (a) and (b).  
These are announcements made for transparency reasons alone, such as: 

• membership of outside bodies that have made representations on agenda items, or 

• where a member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with that person, or 

• where an item would affect the well-being of a member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her financial 
position. 

Voluntary announcements do not prevent the member from participating or voting on the relevant item 

 

Page 2



Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Page 4



6. In relation to the criteria (h) to (m) of the Call In procedure, under items (i), there is
not a clear majority in favour of extending the Zone F CPZ as outlined in the decision
made according to the informal consultation. That a review would be more
appropriate or further consultation using alternative techniques such as face to face
interviews. Under (j) it does not demonstrate a clear majority in favour of extending
the Zone F CPZ scheme within the consultation area and under (k) there is not a
clear majority in favour of extending the Zone F CPZ as outlined in the decision
made according to the informal consultation.

Sign�:

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



   
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Decision taken by: Councillor Mrs Ann Berry, Cabinet Member for Transport 

and Commercial 
 

Subject:  INFORMAL CONSULTATION ON PROPOSALS TO 
EXTEND CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES F & G. 

 
 

Key decision: No 
 

 

Date decision taken: 19 February 2019 
 

 
The proposal is to extend the F & G Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ) as shown in 
appendix 1. This report puts forward the findings of the informal consultation for the 
proposed extensions, and makes recommendations that reflect the responses 
received.   
 
 
DECISION: 
1. To receive and note Report C/18/76. 
2. That for the proposed zone F extension, parking controls are not 

progressed in the section Black Bull Road, and all roads to the east of it 
as there is little or no overall support for the introduction of restrictions in 
these roads. 

3. That subject to statutory consultations, parking controls are progressed 
in roads west of Black Bull Road, except in Albert Road, Edward Road, 
and Bonsor Road where respondents have indicated no support for 
restrictions.  

4. That for zone G proposed extension, subject to statutory consultations, 
parking controls are progressed in all but Harbour Way, where a majority 
of respondents did not support the proposed restrictions. 

5. That the hours of operation for the permit restrictions replicate existing 
zones F & G. 

6. That in roads where shared use parking is proposed, non-permit holders 
be allowed free limited waiting for one or two hours. 

7. That each household be restricted to two resident permits. 
8. That the number of residents’ visitors’ permits per household be limited 

to 50 in any year but this limit be extended in exceptional circumstances. 
9. That residents and businesses with more than one car be entitled to buy a 

shared permit for the number of vehicles registered to them. 
10. That the fees for permits and eligibility criteria replicate current 

arrangements for existing scheme as follows: 
 

DECISION NUMBER 

18/076 

Page 23



Residents’ Permit    £30 per year 

Additional resident permit   £30 per year 

Shared Resident permit   £30 per year 

Resident Visitor permit   £5.20 per 5 sessions 

Business permit      £60 per year 

Replacement lost or stolen permit £5.20 

Special permit (Health & care workers) Free 

 

Eligibility criteria: 

 

I. Resident permit 

a) The applicant’s usual place of residence should be in the CPZ 

b) The vehicle is either a passenger vehicle or a goods vehicle of a height 

less than 3.2 metres (10ft 6ins) and length less than 6.5 metres (21ft 

4ins) a gross weight not exceeding 5 tonnes. 

 

II. Resident visitor permits 

             Applicant’s usual place of residence should be in the CPZ 

 

III. Business permit 

a) The business operates from an address within the CPZ 

b) The vehicle is essential for the efficient operation of the business 

 

11. That a proposed amendment traffic regulation order be advertised as 
soon as possible for the implementation of the recommended parking 
controls, and that the Transportation Manager reports back to the Cabinet 
Member if there are any objections. 

 
12. That a full review of the parking in the extended areas, and the roads that 

have been excluded, be carried out 12 months after implementation. 

 
 
 

Reasons for decision: 
The Cabinet Member for Transport and Commercial is asked to agree the 

recommendations set out below because: 

Page 24



a) There are genuine long-term parking problems in the roads recommended for 
parking controls. 

b) The responses received indicate a majority of respondents in the roads 
recommended, are in favour of parking controls to be introduced. 

 
 
Alternative Options (if any) 
 
None 
 
 
Declarations or personal/prejudicial Interests:  
None 
 
 

Background Documents:    
None 
 
 
The decision set out above (as amended if applicable) was made by me and I 
confirm that I have no personal or prejudicial interest in the matter. 
 
 

Signed:          
     Date: 19 February 2019 

 
Councillor Mrs Ann Berry 
Cabinet Member for Transport and Commercial 
 

 

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 
 
Call-In and Implementation: 
 
Call-In deadline: 5pm on Tuesday 26 February2019 
 
Implementation: Wednesday 27 February 2019 

 
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY 

 
 

Decision Called-in:   Yes    No  

If the decision is not called-in by the above deadline, it will be implemented on the 
date shown.   

Call-in  

Date of Review 

Outcome of Call-in:  Refer Back  Refer to Council  Implement  

Page 25



 
 
 
Authorisation to Implement Decision: _________________________________ 
     Chief Executive/Director 
Date: 

 
 

 

 

Page 26



 

1 

          

 

Report Number C/18/76 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To:  Cabinet Member for Transport and Commercial   
Date:  11 February 2019 
Status:  Non- Key Decision      
Head of Service: Andy Blaszkowicz, Head of Commercial and 

Technical Services 
Cabinet Member: Councillor Ann Berry, Transport and Commercial  
 
SUBJECT:  INFORMAL CONSULTATION ON PROPOSALS TO EXTEND 

CONTROLLED PARKING ZONES F & G. 
 
SUMMARY: The proposal is to extend the F & G Controlled Parking Zones (CPZ) 
as shown in appendix 1. This report puts forward the findings of the informal 
consultation for the proposed extensions, and makes recommendations that 
reflect the responses received.   
 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS: 
The Cabinet Member for Transport and Commercial is asked to agree the 
recommendations set out below because: 
a) There are genuine long-term parking problems in the roads recommended 

for parking controls. 
b) The responses received indicate a majority of respondents in the roads 

recommended, are in favour of parking controls to be introduced. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS: 
1. To receive and note Report C/18/76. 
2. That for the proposed zone F extension, parking controls are not 

progressed in the section Black Bull Road, and all roads to the east of 
it as there is little or no overall support for the introduction of 
restrictions in these roads. 

3. That subject to statutory consultations, parking controls are 
progressed in roads west of Black Bull Road, except in Albert Road, 
Edward Road, and Bonsor Road where respondents have indicated no 
support for restrictions.  

4. That for zone G proposed extension, subject to statutory consultations, 
parking controls are progressed in all but Harbour Way, where a 
majority of respondents did not support the proposed restrictions. 

5. That the hours of operation for the permit restrictions replicate existing 
zones F & G. 

This Report will be made 
public on 11 February 
2019 

Page 27



 2 

6. That in roads where shared use parking is proposed, non-permit 
holders be allowed free limited waiting for one or two hours. 

7. That each household be restricted to two resident permits. 
8. That the number of residents’ visitors’ permits per household be 

limited to 50 in any year but this limit be extended in exceptional 
circumstances. 

9. That residents and businesses with more than one car be entitled to 
buy a shared permit for the number of vehicles registered to them. 

10. That the fees for permits and eligibility criteria replicate current 
arrangements for existing scheme as follows: 
 
Residents’ Permit    £30 per year 
Additional resident permit   £30 per year 
Shared Resident permit   £30 per year 
Resident Visitor permit   £5.20 per 5 sessions 
Business permit      £60 per year 
Replacement lost or stolen permit £5.20 
Special permit (Health & care workers) Free 

 
Eligibility criteria: 
 
I. Resident permit 
a) The applicant’s usual place of residence should be in the CPZ 
b) The vehicle is either a passenger vehicle or a goods vehicle of a 

height less than 3.2 metres (10ft 6ins) and length less than 6.5 
metres (21ft 4ins) a gross weight not exceeding 5 tonnes. 

 
II. Resident visitor permits 

             Applicant’s usual place of residence should be in the CPZ 
 

III. Business permit 
a) The business operates from an address within the CPZ 
b) The vehicle is essential for the efficient operation of the business 

 
11. That a proposed amendment traffic regulation order be advertised as 

soon as possible for the implementation of the recommended parking 
controls, and that the Transportation Manager reports back to the 
Cabinet Member if there are any objections. 

12. That a full review of the parking in the extended areas, and the roads 
that have been excluded, be carried out 12 months after 
implementation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 28



 3 

 
1.       BACKGROUND & INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Controlled Parking Zones F & G were introduced in 2018 and 2017 

respectively. Since the introduction of the parking controls, officers have 
received a number of representations, petitions and applications for parking 
controls to be introduced in neighbouring streets.  
 

1.2 Officers carried out assessments, which confirmed that there are genuine 
long-term parking problems in many of the roads shown in appendix 1.  
The two study areas scored the highest number of points, and were 
selected to be prioritised for possible parking controls in the 2019/20 
financial year. However, many residents expressed acute parking problems 
so a decision was made to start the consultation earlier. 
 

1.3 There were a few roads adjacent to busy roads that were not heavily 
parked when surveyed e.g. Fernbank Crescent and Linden Crescent. 
However, the decision was made to also consult residents in these roads 
as parking could easily displace into these roads if parking controls are 
introduced in the busy roads. 

 
2. PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
 
2.1 The informal consultations took place between the 2nd January and 21st 

January 2019. A total of 1738 consultation packs were posted to all 
addresses within the two study areas. A copy of the consultation document 
is shown as appendix 2.  
 

3.       RESPONSE TO THE PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
 
3.1 A total of 536 questionnaires were returned. This equates to a 31% 

response rate which is good for this type of consultation. Response rates 
for parking consultations across the country are typically between 15% and 
25%. 
 

3.2 It is important to remember that the process that is undertaken is not a 
referendum about parking, but the consideration of specific parking issues 
for residents and businesses in specific streets. Households and 
businesses have the option to participate in the consultation, and fill in and 
return the questionnaire or not engage with the consultation process. 
Officers have assumed that residents who did not respond to the 
consultation have ‘no opinion’ about the parking proposals. 

 
4.      LEVEL OF SUPPORT FOR PARKING CONTROLS 
 

     Zone F Proposed Extension 
 
4.1 The questionnaire asked respondents if they would like their road included 

in the proposed controlled parking zone extension. The area is mainly 
residential. The handful of businesses that responded, did not support the 
proposal. Appendix 3 provides a full breakdown of the responses. 

4.2 Residents of the proposed section of Black Bull Road, and all roads to the 
east (with the exception of Ernwell Road), did not support the proposed 
parking controls. It is therefore recommended that parking controls are not 

Page 29



 4 

progressed in any of these roads. Officers will continue to monitor parking 
in these roads and make suitable recommendations after a year. 

4.3 Respondents in roads to the west of Black Bull Road (with the exception of 
Albert Road, Edward Road, and Bonsor Road) have indicated support for 
parking controls. The responses from Garden Road and Walton Road 
when considered with the responses to question 2 were indeterminate. 
However, a high number respondents indicated ‘no opinion’. It is therefore 
recommended that with the exception of Albert Road, Edward Road and 
Bonsor Road, subject to statutory consultations, parking controls are 
progressed in all roads west of Black Bull Road.  
 
Zone G Proposed Extension 

 
4.4 There was strong support for the proposed Zone G extension with 74% of 

respondents stating yes to this proposal. However, closer examination of 
the responses by road have shown that a majority of respondents in 
Harbour Way would not like their road to be included. When asked whether 
they would support the parking controls if introduced in adjacent roads, the 
vast majority (76%) stated they would still prefer their road to be excluded. 
Further analysis of the responses from the top and bottom section of 
Harbour Way also reveal a majority of respondents in both sections, are 
against the proposal. 

4.5 Zone G proposed extended area is also mainly residential.  Responses 
were received from some of the few businesses in the area. A majority 
indicated they did not support the proposals but the reasons for this are 
unclear.  

4.6 As the majority of respondents in the entire study area are in favour of the 
proposals, it is therefore recommended that subject to statutory 
consultations, parking controls are progressed in all but Harbour Way. 
Officers will continue to monitor parking in Harbour Way and make further 
recommendations at a later date.   

4.7 The proposed restrictions include limited waiting for non-permit holders so 
customers visiting businesses in the area will still be able to park without 
charge. 

 
5. ANALYSIS OF ADDITIONAL COMMENTS FROM RESIDENTS 
 
5.1 The questionnaires gave respondents the opportunity to make additional 

comments about the proposals. Many residents reiterated their preference 
for parking controls and how it would benefit them. Others stated the 
problems occur outside the proposed operational hours, and that this 
scheme will do little to address them. There were also a few comments 
about the costs of permits with some residents indicating they will not be 
able to afford them, whilst others stated they would ‘gladly pay to be able to 
park close to their homes’. Some residents also commented on matters not 
relating to parking e.g. pot holes, bins, planning issues etc. 

 
           Officers Comments 
 
5.2 The council is currently not able to provide a 24 hour enforcement regime 

due to the significant costs for such operations. Also, problems at night 
occur in areas where some households own more than one vehicle, off-
street parking is limited, and there is not enough space for the number of 
cars. What a CPZ will do is prevent commuter and long-stay parking and so 

Page 30



 5 

increase the number of spaces for residents and businesses during the 
hours of operation. 

 
5.3 The cost of a resident permit (£30 per annum) is one of the lowest in the 

county. The scheme will cost money to set-up, run and enforce. The 
charges for permits will go towards these costs.  

 
6. CONCLUSION 
 
6.1 In conclusion, there was a good level of response to the consultation with 

the response rate well above the normal level for this type of consultation. 
Overall, respondents within the majority of the roads did support the 
extension of the CPZ into their roads, hence the recommendation to 
progress the parking controls in a limited number of roads. 

 
6.2 Parking Services will continue to monitor the parking situation in both study 

areas. A further review will be conducted after a year, which will include the 
roads that have been excluded, and the analysis reported to Cabinet 
Member for Transport. This review will be also be used to gauge residents 
overall satisfaction, and seek views on whether they would like to see any 
changes made to the CPZs and level of enforcement. 

 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 The costs of introducing the new on-street parking controls will be around 

£6000. This can met from existing budgets. The costs include expenditure 
for new road markings, signing, and TRO work. 

 
7.2 Enforcement of the extended CPZ would not need the Civil Enforcement 

Officers to deviate from their current patrol routes and could be absorbed 
within existing resources. The proportion of time spent at each road would 
be adjusted accordingly. A staffing request has been made to assist with 
the additional administrative work. 

 
7.3 Income generation from the scheme is anticipated to be very low as there 

are no ‘pay & display’ facilities with this scheme. It is therefore prudent not 
to allow for additional income in the budget at this stage. 

 
8. LEGAL/FINANCIAL AND OTHER CONTROLS/POLICY MATTERS 
 
8.1 Legal Officer’s Comments (DK) 

Traffic Regulation Orders ("TROs") include but are not limited to residents’ 
parking bays. Kent County Council ("KCC"), as the highways authority, has 
power to make TROs under sections 1 and 2 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. Any TROs proposed by SDC must be approved and 
made by KCC in order to be valid. Once the TRO has been made, a notice 
must be published confirming the making of the TRO and its effect and 
before it comes into force, the Council must ensure that traffic signs are 
placed on or near the road which provide adequate information about the 
effect of the TRO. 

 
8.2 Finance Officer’s Comments (RH) 

The financial implications have been addressed and costed by the author 
of this report in section 7. 
 

Page 31



 6 

8.3 Diversities and Equalities Implications (FM)  
There are no negative implications arising from this report, particularly in 
relation to holders of disabled parking badges, as the existing disabled 
parking bays will remain. The normal exemptions for blue badge holders 
would apply on yellow lines. Vehicles displaying a disabled person’s badge 
would be permitted to park in permit holder and share-use bays without 
displaying a permit. 

 
9. CONTACT OFFICERS AND BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

Councillors with any questions arising out of this report should contact the 
following officer 
 
Report Author, Frederick Miller- Transportation Manager 
Telephone: 01303 853207. Email: frederick.miller@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk 

 
 The following background documents have been relied upon in the 

preparation of this report:  
 

None 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 – Plan showing the proposed CPZ extension 
Appendix 2 - Consultation document 
Appendix 3 - Spreadsheet showing breakdown of responses by road 

Page 32



Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Direct Dial:    01303 853660 

Email:        tro.consultation@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk 
Date:        2nd January 2019 

 

 
 
******************* 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      
 
 
Dear Resident/Business, 
 
Proposed Extension to Controlled Parking Zone (F) 
 
Folkestone & Hythe District Council introduced a Controlled Parking Zone 
(CPZ) in parts of East Folkestone recently. The scheme has removed the 
long-term commuter and office-worker parking from residential roads within 
the CPZ, and has helped considerably to improve road safety by protecting 
sight lines and property accesses. 
 
Since the scheme was introduced, a number of residents outside the CPZ 
have also raised issues about long-term parking problems and obstructive 
parking. These residents have requested similar parking controls to be 
introduced in their roads. To gauge the support for such controls, the 
Council’s Cabinet Member for Transport has therefore agreed to consult you 
on CPZ proposals for your street, which would be an extension of the existing 
zone F as shown on the enclosed map. 
 
As a resident or business of this area, you are requested to indicate on the 
enclosed questionnaire whether you would like your road to be included in the 
CPZ. 
 
We would urge you to complete the enclosed questionnaire, even if you do 
not own a vehicle, as parking could affect your visitors and we would like the 
views of enough people to obtain an accurate and conclusive result. Please 
return the completed questionnaire by 21st January 2019. The final decision 
rests with the Cabinet Member for Transport. 
 
A brief summary of how the CPZ will operate in your road is provided below: 
 

 All kerbside space will be controlled during the operational hours 
indicated on the signs. The operational times for the existing CPZ are 
all days (excluding bank holidays), 8am-6pm, and it is proposed to 
retain these hours.  

 Yellow lines will be introduced at junctions, bends and pinch points 
where parking is not allowed. 

 ‘Shared use’ or ‘permit holders only’ parking are being proposed in all 
roads. Non-permit holders will be permitted to park for a limited period 
of one hour in ‘shared-use’ bays. 

 The holder of a resident or business permit will be allowed to park in 
the ‘shared use’ bays during the operational hours with no time limit. 

Page 35



Residents may purchase visitor permits for their visitors. Permit 
charges are shown in the table below.  

 The CPZ is intended to protect parking for local residents during the 
scheme’s operational hours, but cannot guarantee a parking space 
close to your property.  

 By law, Blue Badge holders are allowed to park their vehicle without 
the need for a permit provided that a valid disabled persons’ badge is 
displayed. 

 
How will the permits work? 
 
If you own a car or a van and plan to park on the street during the operational 
hours of the proposed parking zone, you will need a permit. Similarly, you will 
need to buy visitor permits if people visit you by car and you want them to be 
able to park in a parking space near to your home. If you do not need to park 
on-street, you will not need a permit.  
 
Resident Permits - Permits will be issued only to residents whose vehicles 
are registered at the address within the proposed zone. Residents will be 
entitled to up to two permits per household.  
 
Resident Visitor Permits - Residents will be able to purchase visitor permits 
for their visitors online. It is not necessary to hold a resident permit to 
purchase visitor permits. The number of visitor permits residents could 
purchase will be limited to 50 a year to prevent abuse such as sales to non-
residents. However, this number can be increased in exceptional 
circumstances. 
 
Business Permits - Businesses based within the CPZ may purchase permits 
for vehicles essential to the operation of the business (e.g. delivery vehicles). 
They will not be issued for the purpose of commuting to work.  
 
Health and Care Workers Permits - Residents are eligible to apply for a 
Special Permit if they a receive regular visits from care or other support 
service organisations, for example, home helps, carers. This permit is free.  
 
Tradesperson’s Permits - Builders and other tradespersons can use 
residents’ visitor permits to allow vehicles to park close to their client’s homes 
while work is being carried out. Tradesmen can also buy parking waivers 
directly from the council. 
 
Blue Badge Holders - The normal exemptions for blue badge holders would 
apply on yellow lines. Vehicles displaying a disabled person’s blue badge 
would be permitted to park in shared use and permit holder spaces without 
displaying a permit. 
 
Shared Permit - If you have off-street parking for one vehicle, and your 
household/business has more than one vehicle, it may be possible to be 
issued with a shared permit that will cover other vehicles. The permit will 
cover the registration numbers of the vehicles but will allow only one vehicle to 
park on-street at any one time during the hours of control.   

Page 36



 
 
Controlled Parking Zone Permit Charge 
 

Type of permit Cost 

Resident permit £30 per year 

Additional Resident permit £30 per year 

Shared Resident permit £30 per year 

Business permit £60 per year 

Replacement permit £5.20 

Special permit (Health and Care Workers) Free 

Resident Visitor permits (Maximum 50 permits) £5.20 per 5 
sessions 

 
If you require any further information on the proposals, please email 
tro.consultation@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk 
 
Yours faithfully, 
 
 
 
 
Frederick Miller 
Transportation Manager 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 37

mailto:tro.consultation@folkestone-hythe.gov.uk


FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 

 
Q. Why must I buy a permit to park in my own road? 
A. The new parking scheme will make it easier for you to park, but the scheme 
will cost money to set up, run and enforce. Therefore a small charge needs to 
be made to cover the running costs of the proposed system. 
 
Q. I pay Council Tax and road tax, why do I have to pay for a parking 
permit as well? 
A. Council tax and road tax contribute towards services that are available to 
the entire population such as education, social services and highway 
maintenance. Controlled parking schemes only affect a small area. By law, 
the costs need to be met by the scheme itself through sales of permits. 
 
Q. I am a business owner. Are my staff allowed a business parking 
permit? 
A. No. The business permit aims to make parking easier for rate-paying 
business owners who require a vehicle for operational reasons. It is not meant 
to provide subsidised parking for employees. 
 
Q. Will owning a parking permit guarantee me a space outside my 
home? 
A. No. A controlled parking scheme on the public highway cannot reserve 
specific spaces for individual users and therefore we cannot guarantee a 
particular parking space. However, by preventing long-stay parking by non-
residents in your area, a CPZ makes it much more likely that residents are 
able to find parking spaces near to their homes. 
 
Q. Will the scheme make it easier to park at night? 
A. No. Problems at night occur in areas where some households own more 
than one vehicle, off-street parking is limited, and there is not enough space 
for the number of cars. What a CPZ will do is prevent commuter and long-stay 
parking and so increase the number of spaces for residents and businesses 
during the hours of operation. 
 
Q. I have a crossover (a driveway crossing the pavement) and at the 
moment I park over it. Will I still be able to do this? 
A. Yes.  Unlike some councils, Folkestone & Hythe has designed its scheme 
so that you can continue to do so with a valid parking permit.  
 
Q. Can my visitors park in the controlled parking zone? 
A. You will be able to buy resident’s visitor permits online to enable your 
visitors to park in the ‘permit holders only’ or ‘shared use’ spaces. Visitors will 
also be able to park without a permit in ‘shared use’ bays for up to the 
maximum period indicated on the signs. 
 
 
 
 
 
Q. What about tradesmen, engineers or builders working at my home? 

Page 38



A. A maintenance engineer or builder undertaking a call would be able to use 
a resident’s visitor permit to park in a ‘permit holders only’ or ‘shared use’ 
space. Special arrangements may be possible when long-term building works 
are being undertaken. 
 
Q. What about deliveries? 
A. Provided no obstruction is caused, legitimate delivery vehicles will be able 
to park without a permit for as long as necessary in permit spaces or on 
yellow lines while loading or unloading provided there are no loading 
restrictions in place at that location. 
 
Q. We don’t have a parking problem so why include my road? 
A. If we introduced a parking scheme to a busy road, many people will park 
further out -perhaps in your road if they can park there for free. So it may be in 
your interest to be part of the zone rather than just sit outside it - but of 
course, this is a matter for you to consider. 
 
Q. Yellow lines give us less room to park. Why have them? 
A. We will only install yellow lines where parked vehicles would cause danger 
or obstruct other motorists or pedestrians using the highway. We put yellow 
lines only where they are absolutely necessary. 
 
Q. Do we have to have signs, posts and lines? 
A. To enable a CPZ to be enforced, it is necessary to install road markings 
and signs in some roads. However, we are very conscious of the appearance 
of the street scene so we try to keep signage to an absolute minimum.  We 
also try to locate signs in places that minimise the visual impact from 
properties 
 
Q. What about outside the hours of operation? 
A. Outside the operational hours of the zone, no restrictions apply and parking 
in permit areas is not controlled or restricted. Single yellow line controls will 
not apply either, so you may park your vehicle on them subject to the Highway 
Code. The only exception is where double yellow lines exist, which prevent 
parking at all times. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

This page has been intentionally left blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Controlled Parking Zone (F) Extension Questionnaire 

Page 40



 
Please complete the questionnaire and return it by post in the prepaid 
envelope (no stamp is required) to reach us by the 21 January 2019. Your 
views are important to us! 
 
Address:………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………….. Post Code:……………………. 
 
Q1 Are you a: 
 

Resident Business 
 

 
Q2 Would you like to see your road included in the proposed CPZ 

extension? 
 

 Yes      No preference 
 
 No     
 

 
Only answer Q3 if you said ‘no’ to Q2 
 
Q3 If parking controls were introduced in the road next to yours, would you 

then want your road to be included? 
 

 

Yes     No preference 
 
 
 No    
 

Q4 Do you own or keep a vehicle at your residence? 
 

  
Yes 
 
No 
  
 

If yes, how many are kept and used at your residence by you and any other 
occupants? 
…………. 
 
Please add any further comments you wish to make regarding parking: 
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………………………………
…………………………………………………………………................................ 

  

  

 

  

 

 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52


	Agenda
	3 Call-in of Decision number 18/076 -  Informal Consultation on Proposals to Extend controlled parking zones F & G
	Tillson - redacted
	jeffrey - redacted
	Lyons - redacted
	Goddard - redacted
	dn20190219ConsultationFandG
	rcabt20190211ReportontheanalysisofInformalconsultationforProposedZoneGFCPZExtension
	Appendix 1 Map Zone F & G
	rcabt20190211app2ProposedExtensiontoCPZQuestionnaireZoneF
	rcabt20190211app3AnalysisofPublicConsultationZoneFGExtensionspdf




